
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Monday, 23 August 2021 

 
TIME:  3.00 pm 

 
VENUE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  

 

 

4   Public Briefing Items  
 

The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 

of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 

sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda. 
 

 

4a Land at Ontario Basin - Agreement for Lease Followed by Lease and 
Option to Purchase (see item 6(a))  

 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

5   Exclusion of the Public  

 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  

 

 

6a Land at Ontario Basin - Agreement for Lease Followed by Lease and 
Option to Purchase  
 

(Pages 7 - 46) 

7   Any other business  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1:  Open to the Public – Item No. 4a 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE PROPERTY & REGENERATION PANEL 
 

 
FOR DECISION ON 23 AUGUST 2021 

 

TITLE: LAND AT ONTARIO BASIN – AGREEMENT FOR LEASE FOLLOWED BY 

LEASE & OPTION TO PURCHASE 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The Deputy City Mayor is recommended to:-         
 

Note the proposals below and the terms as set out in the body of this report and note 
that the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval will be 

considered elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

1. Approve the provisionally agreed Heads of Terms to the Agreement for Lease 

followed by Lease on the Phase 1 land. 
 

2. Approve the provisionally agreed Heads of Terms to the Option to Purchase 

over the Phase 2 land.  
 

3. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 
formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 
recommendations. 

 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

On the 11th January 2021 the City Council agreed to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding and Exclusivity Agreements with the proposed purchaser in relation to 

land at Ontario Basin Salford Quays.  
 
The agreements were to allow the parties to explore the opportunity for the potential 

development of the site part of which is owned by the Council with part held by way 
of a longlease by a third party. 

The parties agreed to a timeframe of 6 months, effective from the date of execution 
of the agreements (18th February 2021). 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4a



 2 

Indicative Head of Terms for the structure of the associated land sale, assuming a 
scheme proposal could be agreed between the parties and best value obligations 
could be demonstrated, were provisionally agreed in tandem with the Memorandum 

of Understanding and Exclusivity Agreement. 
 

The parties have progressed constructive negotiations and have now provisionally 
agreed both a deliverable outline scheme for the site and revised Heads of Terms for 
a contractual structure which supports a phased approach to scheme development, 

in recognition of the need for ongoing engagement and agreement with the third 
party landowner. 

 
The Council has secured independent valuation advice in relation to the provisionally 
agreed values detailed within the report given that negotiations have taken place on 

a one to one basis.  
 

Limited information is provided in this part 1 report as the matter is subject to 
confidentiality arrangements arising from an earlier mediation case between the 
parties in relation to another transaction.  

 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  Details will be shared when the associated Part 2 

report is considered.  

 

KEY DECISION: YES

 

 
1.0 Background 

 

1.1 On the 11th January 2021 the City Council agreed to enter into a Memorandum 
of Understanding Agreement and Exclusivity Agreement with the proposed 
purchaser with the objective of collaboratively formulating development 

proposals for a parcel of land at Ontario Basin, Salford Quays, The subject site 
is owned by the Council and a third party. The parties agreed to a timeframe of 

6 months, effective from the date of execution of the agreements (18th 
February 2021). 

 

1.2 Indicative Heads of Terms for the structure of the subsequent land sale, 
assuming a scheme proposal could be agreed between the parties and best 

value obligations satisfied, were provisionally agreed in tandem with the 
Memorandum Agreement and Exclusivity Agreement. 

 

1.3 A copy of the 11th January 2021 City Issue’s report, containing full background 
detail is provided in Annex 1 in the accompanying Part 2 report.  

 
1.4 Initial scheme options have been advanced in consultation with Planning 

colleagues and a preferred scheme, that optimises the development potential 

of the site has been agreed in principle ( massing and scale) and in due 
course will form the basis of a formal planning application. 

Page 2



 3 

 
1.5 Commercial negotiations have been similarly positive and provisional Heads 

of Terms have now been agreed for a contractual structure which supports a 

phased approach to scheme delivery in recognition of the need for ongoing 
engagement and agreement with a third party landowner on part of the site. 

 
 
 
2.0      Scheme Proposals  
 

2.1 An outline masterplan for the comprehensive redevelopment of the whole of the 
Ontario Basin site, including the land in third party ownership has been 
developed. 

 
2.2 The proposals envisage the delivery of the following :- 

 
 Block 1: Hotel, eight storey, 154 beds (Phase 2) 
 

 Block 2: Residential, twelve storey, 172 units (Phase2) 
 

 Block 3: Hotel ( 3*), ten storey, 162 beds (Phase 1)  
 
 Block 4:Residential, twenty eight storey, 256 units(Phase 1). 

 
2.3 Initial discussions have taken place with planning colleagues and positive 

feedback has been received in respect of key design principle’s and overall 

scale and massing of the proposition. Engagement is now progressing through 
to formal Pre-Application discussions with the LPA.  The planning strategy and 

approach on Phase 2 remains under consideration by the parties. 
  
3.0  Land Ownership/Contractual Structure. 

 

3.1 The City Council owns the freehold interest in the whole of the subject site as 

shown edged red on site plan at Annex 2.  The Council interest is however 
subject to a 125 year long leasehold interest granted in 1995, the extent of the 
lease demise is shown shaded blue. 

 
3.2 Given the scale and quantum of development proposed, the uncertainties 

around the availability of the leasehold interest and the potential need to explore 
the use of compulsory purchase powers, the parties have formulated a 
contractual structure which will facilitate a phased drawdown and development 

of the site.  
 

3.3 Phase 1 
 

3.4 Phase 1 is a developable land parcel not encumbered by the lease and for which 

the Council can provide full vacant possession. The full extent of Phase 1 is 
identified on the plan at Annex 2.   

 

Page 3



 4 

3.5 As outlined in Section 2 above the elements proposed for delivery on Phase 1 
include Block 3 (3* hotel, 162 beds) and Block 4 (residential, 256 units) 

  

3.6 Heads of Terms for an Agreement for Lease followed by Lease have been 
provisionally agreed between parties. These are detailed in Annex 3 which will 

be provided in the Part 2 report. 
 
3.7 Commercial negations and development appraisal analysis has been 

progressed on the basis of the agreed proposals for Phase 1. These 
negotiations have resulted in provisionally agreed “base land payment” and 

priority developer profit margin.  
 
3.8 The City Council has received independent property advice from Cushman & 

Wakefield, with scheme viability, including residual land values and developer 
profit margins, being robustly assessed in full accordance with RICS Guidance 

on the valuation of the development land. 
 
3.9 Upon completion / sale of the scheme a full open book review of actual financial 

performance will be undertaken, with contractual provision in place for the 
sharing of overage.  Full details are provided in the Part 2 report. 

 
3.10 Phase 2 

 

3.11 Phase 2 is affected by the long leasehold interest and that interest will need to 
be acquired in part/ or in whole to enable any further development plots to come 
forward.  It is hoped that the site can be acquired through negotiation however 

it is recognised that use of compulsory purchase powers may need to be 
considered. 

 
3.12 In view of the need and uncertainties around site assembly of the Phase 2 land 

parties have agreed to progress by way of an “Option to Purchase” for which 

Heads of Terms have now been provisionally agreed. Full details of which are 
provided in Annex 4 in the Part 2 report. 

 
3.13 The option, which will run for a maximum of 5 year, represents a formal 

commitment by the parties to engage in further collaborative working to explore 

the delivery of the future phase.   
 

3.14 Proposals for  Phase 2 development will be subject of further reports once a 
clear strategy has been developed and provisionally agreed. As with Phase 1 
the Council will look to secure specialist independent valuation advice to ensure 

best value obligations are satisfied in relation to the Phase 2 land. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 4



 5 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Council’s capital receipt programme, Regeneration, Housing.  

 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable 

 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Details to be provided in the Part 2 report 

 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Legal Implications supplied by - Supplied by: David 
Wilcock, with support from Legal Services and Addleshaw Goddard. 

 

Details provided in the Part 2 report. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Mee – Strategic Finance Manager 

Ext 0434 

 

Details provided in the Part 2 report. 
 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable. 

 

Please see legal comments above in respect of procurement considerations 
 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

 
MEMBER COMMENTS: Not sought at this stage. 

 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

None 

 

Page 5



 6 

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Cartwright  TEL NO: 0161 779 6074 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Ordsall 

Page 6



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 

 
Name of Report:  

 

Land at Ontario basin Salford Quays 

 

 
Committee:  

 
The Property & Regeneration Briefing  

Date: 23rd August 2021 

 
Category of exemption applied: ………3………………………………………… 

 

 

Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues? 
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 

certain decisions?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 

probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 

for council taxpayers?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 

decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

Yes 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 

information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-

making or examples of malpractice? 

No 

 
 

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 

 
 

No 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 

Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 

public any useful information? 
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 

without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 

situation? 
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 

the public useful information?  
 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk?  

 
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld?  

 
  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide explicit reasoning) 

 

 

The matter reported flows from a mediation session in relation to another property 

transaction between the parties that is the subject of ongoing litigation. That 
mediation session and the negotiations and discussions that have followed have 
been undertaken under the confidentiality agreed as part of the mediation 

engagement. The confidential arrangements extent to the reporting of the proposed 
agreements and have dictated that the decision to be made and full information 

shared will be considered as a Part 2 item 

 

The report details the commercially sensitive terms and conditions that are agreed for 
a transaction that is not yet legally completed and therefore it is not appropriate at 

this time to release the information. A summary of the information contained in the 
Part 2 report has been provided in the associated Part 1 report to ensure 
transparency on the decision being taken as far as is possible. 

 

 

Other documents attached? No 

 

Page 8



Name and Title:  Peter Openshaw Interim Strategic Director of Place  
 

Date:   18th August  2021 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Land at Ontario Basin - Agreement for Lease Followed by Lease and Option to Purchase (see item 6(a))
	6a Land at Ontario Basin - Agreement for Lease Followed by Lease and Option to Purchase
	Ontario Part 2 FINAL
	Annex 1 City Issues Report Jan 21
	Annex 2 Scheme Images
	Annex 3 AFL HoTs
	Annex 4 Option HoTs


